

## CHAPTER 158

SENATE BILL No. 48  
(Amends Chapter 69)  
(Amended by Chapter 194)

AN ACT concerning education; relating to certain powers, duties and functions of school districts, technical colleges, community colleges and the state board of regents; amending K.S.A. 72-1398, 74-32,101 and 74-32,102 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 72-1398, as amended by section 15 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 42, 74-32,101, as amended by section 22 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 42 and 74-32,102, as amended by section 23 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 42.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

New Section 1. (a) It is the public policy of the state of Kansas that all contracts entered into by the board of education of a school district, or any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the board, provide that the school district and board of education shall be responsible solely for the district's or board's actions or failure to act under a contract.

(b) The board of education of a school district or any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the board shall not have the authority to enter into a contract under which the school district or board agrees to, or is required to, indemnify or hold harmless against damages, injury or death resulting from the actions or failure to act on the part of any party to a contract other than the board or district.

(c) The provisions of any contract entered into in violation of this section shall be contrary to the public policy of the state of Kansas and shall be void and unenforceable.

New Sec. 2. (a) It is the public policy of the state of Kansas that all contracts entered into by the board of education of a school district, or any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the board, shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Kansas.

(b) The board of education of a school district and any of its officers or employees acting on behalf of the board shall have no power to enter into a contract which provides that the contract shall be governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a state other than the state of Kansas.

(c) The board of education of a school district and any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the board shall have no power, pursuant to a contract, to submit to the jurisdiction of any court other than a court of the state of Kansas.

(d) The provisions of any contract entered into in violation of this section shall be contrary to the public policy of the state of Kansas and shall be void and unenforceable.

New Sec. 3. (a) Except as provided by subsection (c), any contract entered into by the board of education of a school district or any of its officers or employees acting on behalf of the board shall contain the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended.

(b) Except as provided by subsection (c), any contract entered into after the effective date of this act shall be deemed to have incorporated the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended, even if such provisions are not specifically contained in such contract.

(c) The board of education of a school district may omit any of the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended, upon the affirmative recorded vote of a majority of the members of the board. The board shall not have the authority to waive or omit from the provisions of any contract the provisions of section 1 or 2, and amendments thereto.

New Sec. 4. (a) It is the public policy of the state of Kansas that all contracts entered into by the board of trustees of a community college, or any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the board, provide that the community college and board of trustees shall be responsible solely for the community college's or board's actions or failure to act under a contract.

(b) The board of trustees of a community college and any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the board shall not have the authority to enter into a contract under which the community college or

board agrees to, or is required to, indemnify or hold harmless against damages, injury or death resulting from the actions or failure to act on the part of any party to a contract other than the board or the community college.

(c) The provisions of any contract entered into in violation of this section shall be contrary to the public policy of the state of Kansas and shall be void and unenforceable.

New Sec. 5. (a) It is the public policy of the state of Kansas that all contracts entered into by the board of trustees of a community college, or any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the board, shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Kansas.

(b) The board of trustees of a community college and any of its officers or employees acting on behalf of the board shall have no power to enter into a contract which provides that the contract shall be governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a state other than the state of Kansas.

(c) The board of trustees of a community college and any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the board shall have no power, pursuant to a contract, to submit to the jurisdiction of any court other than a court of the state of Kansas.

(d) The provisions of any contract entered into in violation of this section shall be contrary to the public policy of the state of Kansas and shall be void and unenforceable.

New Sec. 6. (a) Except as provided by subsection (c), any contract entered into by the board of trustees of a community college or any of its officers or employees acting on behalf of the board shall contain the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended.

(b) Except as provided by subsection (c), any contract entered into after the effective date of this act shall be deemed to have incorporated the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended, even if such provisions are not specifically contained in such contract.

(c) The board of trustees of a community college may omit any of the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended, upon the affirmative recorded vote of a majority of the members of the board. The board shall not have the authority to waive or omit from the provisions of any contract the provisions of section 4 or 5, and amendments thereto.

New Sec. 7. (a) It is the public policy of the state of Kansas that all contracts entered into by the governing body of a technical college, or any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the governing body, provide that the technical college and the governing body thereof shall be responsible solely for the technical college's or board's actions or failure to act under a contract.

(b) The governing body of a technical college and any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the governing body shall not have the authority to enter into a contract under which the technical college or the governing body agrees to, or is required to, indemnify or hold harmless against damages, injury or death resulting from the actions or failure to act on the part of any party to a contract other than the governing body or the technical college.

(c) The provisions of any contract entered into in violation of this section shall be contrary to the public policy of the state of Kansas and shall be void and unenforceable.

New Sec. 8. (a) It is the public policy of the state of Kansas that all contracts entered into by the governing body of a technical college, or any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the governing body, shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Kansas.

(b) The governing body of a technical college and any of its officers or employees acting on behalf of the governing body shall have no power to enter into a contract which provides that the contract shall be governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a state other than the state of Kansas.

(c) The governing body of a technical college and any officers or employees thereof acting on behalf of the governing body shall have no power, pursuant to a contract, to submit to the jurisdiction of any court

other than a court of the state of Kansas.

(d) The provisions of any contract entered into in violation of this section shall be contrary to the public policy of the state of Kansas and shall be void and unenforceable.

New Sec. 9. (a) Except as provided by subsection (c), any contract entered into by the governing body of a technical college or any of its officers or employees acting on behalf of the governing body shall contain the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended.

(b) Except as provided by subsection (c), any contract entered into after the effective date of this act shall be deemed to have incorporated the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended, even if such provisions are not specifically contained in such contract.

(c) The governing body of a technical college may omit any of the mandatory contract provisions prescribed by the department of administration in form DA-146a, as amended, upon the affirmative recorded vote of a majority of the members of the governing body. The governing body shall not have the authority to waive or omit from the provisions of any contract the provisions of section 7 or 8, and amendments thereto.

Sec. 10. K.S.A. 72-1398 is hereby amended to read as follows: 72-1398. (a) The national board for professional teaching standards certification incentive program is hereby established for the purpose of rewarding teachers who have attained certification from the national board. Teachers who have attained certification from the national board shall be issued a master teacher's ~~certificate~~ *license* by the state board of education. A master teacher's ~~certificate~~ *license* shall be valid for 10 years and renewable thereafter every 10 years through compliance with continuing education and professional development requirements prescribed by the state board. Teachers who have attained certification from the national board and who are employed by a school district shall be paid an incentive bonus in the amount of \$1,000 each school year, ~~not exceeding 10 years,~~ that the teacher remains employed by a school district and retains a valid master teacher's ~~certificate~~ *license*.

(b) The board of education of each school district employing one or more national board certified teachers shall pay the incentive bonus to each such teacher in each school year that the teacher retains eligibility for such payment. Each board of education which has made payments of incentive bonuses to national board certified teachers under this subsection may file an application with the state board of education for state aid and shall certify to the state board the amount of such payments. The application and certification shall be on a form prescribed and furnished by the state board, shall contain such information as the state board shall require and shall be filed at the time specified by the state board.

(c) In each school year, each school district employing one or more national board certified teachers is entitled to receive from appropriations for the national board for professional teaching standards certification incentive program an amount which is equal to the amount certified to the state board of education in accordance with the provisions of subsection (b). The state board shall certify to the director of accounts and reports the amount due each school district. The director of accounts and reports shall draw warrants on the state treasurer payable to the treasurer of each school district entitled to payment under this section upon vouchers approved by the state board.

(d) Moneys received by a board of education under this section shall be deposited in the general fund of the school district. ~~Moneys deposited in the general fund of the school district under this subsection~~ and shall be considered reimbursements to the district for the purpose of the school district finance and quality performance act and may be expended whether the same have been budgeted or not.

(e) *The state board of education is authorized to provide scholarships of \$1,100 each to teachers who are accepted to participate in the national board for professional teaching standards program for initial certification. The state board of education is authorized to provide scholarships of \$500 each to teachers who are accepted to participate in the national board for professional teaching standards program for renewal of certification. Any teacher who has been accepted to participate in such program may file an application with the state board of education for a scholarship. The application shall be on a form prescribed and furnished by the state board,*

shall contain such information as the state board shall require and shall be filed at the time specified by the state board.

(f) As used in this section, the term school district means any school district organized and operating under the laws of this state.

Sec. 11. K.S.A. 74-32,101 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,101. As used in this act:

(a) "Executive officer" means the chief executive officer of the state board of regents appointed under K.S.A. 74-3203a, and amendments thereto;

(b) "qualified student" means a person who: (1) Is a resident of the state of Kansas; (2) has been accepted for admission to or is enrolled full time in a course of instruction leading to ~~certification~~ licensure as a teacher; and (3) has qualified for the award of a scholarship under the teacher service scholarship program on the basis of having demonstrated scholastic ability, or who has previously so qualified and remains qualified for renewal of the scholarship on the basis of remaining in good standing and making satisfactory progress toward completion of the requirements of the course of instruction in which enrolled;

(c) "hard-to-fill teaching discipline" means (1) a teaching discipline in which there is a critical shortage of teachers as determined and specified by the state board of education; and (2) *the teaching disciplines of mathematics and science for any of the grades five through 12*;

(d) "underserved area" means a geographic area of the state in which there is a critical shortage of teachers as determined and specified by the state board of education;

(e) "state educational institution" has the meaning ascribed thereto in K.S.A. 76-711, and amendments thereto;

(f) "private postsecondary educational institution" has the meaning ascribed thereto in K.S.A. 2004 Supp. 74-32,163, and amendments thereto.

Sec. 12. K.S.A. 74-32,102 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,102. (a) There is hereby established the teacher service scholarship program. A scholarship may be awarded under the teacher service scholarship program to any qualified student and may be renewed for each such student who remains qualified for the scholarship. Determination of the students qualified for such scholarships shall be made by the executive officer. Scholastic ability shall be determined on the basis of any one or more of the following: (1) High ACT or SAT score; (2) rank in high school graduation class; (3) cumulative high school or college grade point average; or (4) any other indicator of scholastic ability which the state board of regents determines to be demonstrative of potential for successful completion of a course of instruction leading to ~~certification~~ licensure as a teacher. To the extent practicable and consistent with qualification factors, consideration shall be given to *qualified* students who are members of ethnic minority groups.

(b) A scholarship awarded under the program shall provide for payment to a qualified student of (1) an amount not to exceed 70% of the cost of attendance for an academic year at the teacher education school in which the qualified student is enrolled if such teacher education school is maintained by a state educational institution or (2) an amount not to exceed 70% of the average amount of the cost of attendance for an academic year at the teacher education schools maintained by the state educational institutions if the teacher education school in which the qualified student is enrolled ~~is not a state educational institution~~ *in a private postsecondary educational institution located in the state of Kansas*. A qualified student may be awarded a scholarship for not more than four academic years of undergraduate study, except that a qualified student who is enrolled full time in a course of instruction leading to ~~certification~~ licensure in a teaching discipline for which graduate study is required may be awarded a scholarship for the duration of the course of instruction.

Sec. 13. K.S.A. 72-1398, 72-1398, as amended by section 15 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 42, 74-32,101, 74-32,101, as amended by section 22 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 42, 74-32,102 and 74-32,102, as amended by section 23 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 42 are hereby repealed.

Sec. 14. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the statute book.

